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From: Sean Dougherty
Sent: Thursday, 13 October 2022 9:46 am
To: Suzanne Townsend
Subject: RE: Changes to prescription regs. and ADHD medicines.

Hi Suzanne, 
 
The morning of the 27th is relatively free for me at the moment. Does this work for others? 
 
Regards, 
 
Sean 
 

Sean Dougherty | Manager, Schedule Strategy and Development 
___________________________________________________________ 

 
Pharmac | Level 9, 40 Mercer Street, Wellington 

P:  | F: +64 4 460 4995 | www.pharmac.govt.nz  

 

From: Suzanne Townsend <Suzanne.Townsend@health.govt.nz>  
Sent: Friday, 7 October 2022 2:17 pm 
To: Sean Dougherty <sean.dougherty@pharmac.govt.nz> 
Subject: Changes to prescription regs. and ADHD medicines. 
 

Hi Sean 
 
I have been given your name by Trevor Lloyd.  He suggested you may be the person to talk to.  If not let me know 
who I should approach. 
 
We would like to meet to discuss a couple of things.  Cabinet has agreed to allow the issue of a prescription for up to 
3 months for Class B Drugs.  This was mostly aimed at allowing ADHD patients to get one prescription and avoid the 
costs of prescriber fees, etc. We understand that for this to happen there also needs to be changes to Pharmac 
rules. We would like to discuss how we can make that happen and if there are any other issues for other Class B 
Drugs. 
 

 
 
The Ministry team who would like to meet with you are myself, Eddy Sommers, Diana Suggate (from the Mental 
Health and Addictions Team) and Trevor Lloyd (from Data and Digital). 
 
Please let me know what time suits. 
 
Ngā mihi 

 You don't often get email from suzanne.townsend@health.govt.nz. Learn why this is important  
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Suzanne Townsend 
Manager, Regulatory Policy 
Strategy, Policy and Legislation | Te Pou Rautaki 
M  
E  suzanne.townsend@health.govt.nz  
 
Manatū Hauora, 133 Molesworth Street 
Thorndon, Wellington 6011 
  

 

 

    

 
 
**************************************************************************** 
Statement of confidentiality: This e-mail message and any accompanying 
attachments may contain information that is IN-CONFIDENCE and subject to 
legal privilege. 
If you are not the intended recipient, do not read, use, disseminate, 
distribute or copy this message or attachments. 
If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender 
immediately and delete this message. 
****************************************************************************  

This e-mail message has been scanned for Viruses and Content and cleared by the Ministry of Health's Content and 
Virus Filtering Gateway  
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From: Sean Dougherty
Sent: Tuesday, 18 October 2022 1:46 pm
To: Belinda Ray-Johnson; Fiona Moscrop
Subject: FW: Consultation on DRAFT LEG paper - Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations

2022 and Medicines Amendment Regulations 2022 (No 2)
Attachments: DRAFT LEG paper - Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 and Medicines

Amendment Regulations 2022.docx; Misuse of Drugs Regulations 1977 + Medicines
Regul-v1.0.pdf

 
 

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

 

From: Eddy Sommers <Eddy.Sommers@health.govt.nz>  
Sent: Tuesday, 18 October 2022 1:38 pm 
To: WOOLLASTON, Sharon <Sharon.Woollaston@police.govt.nz>; MARSHALL Kirsty 
<kirsty.marshall@customs.govt.nz>; Matthew.McClennan@justice.govt.nz; Trevor Lloyd 
<Trevor.Lloyd@health.govt.nz>; Serena.Coxhead@treasury.govt.nz; ben.mcbride@dpmc.govt.nz; Sean Dougherty 
<sean.dougherty@pharmac.govt.nz>; Sara McFall <Sara.McFall@health.govt.nz> 
Cc: Suzanne Townsend <Suzanne.Townsend@health.govt.nz>; Jane Hubbard <Jane.Hubbard@health.govt.nz> 
Subject: Consultation on DRAFT LEG paper - Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 and Medicines 
Amendment Regulations 2022 (No 2) 
 

Kia ora koutou 
 
Please find attached a draft Cabinet paper for the Cabinet Legislation Committee to bring into effect amendments to 
the Medicines Regulations 1984 and the Misuse of Drugs Regulations 1977. These amendments will give effect to 
the following policy decisions made by Cabinet in August [CAB-22-MIN-0316]: 

- Enable controlled drug medicines to be prescribed electronically via the NZePS 
- Allow prescriptions for Class B drugs to be prescribed in greater amounts when issued through the NZePS 
- Codifying the waiver that allows electronic prescribing into the regulations 
- ensuring designated pharmacist prescribers and designated nurse prescribers are able to continue to 

prescribe certain medicines when they become controlled drugs. 
 
If there is someone in your organisation you think is more appropriate to review this draft please feel free to pass 
this on. 
 
Also attached to this paper is the first draft of the amendments from PCO. These are quite technical changes but am 
providing this for reference. Please note that this is an early draft and the comments within have since been 
addressed. 
 
Please provide any feedback by COP Friday 21 October. 
 

 You don't often get email from eddy.sommers@health.govt.nz. Learn why this is important  
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Ngā mihi nui 
 

 
 
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
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1 
I N   C O N F I D E N C E 

In Confidence 

Office of the Minister of Health 

Chair, Cabinet Legislation Committee 

 

Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 and Medicines Amendment 
Regulations 2022 (No 2) 

Proposal  

1 This paper seeks authorisation for submission to the Executive Council of the Misuse 
of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 and the Medicines Amendment Regulations 
2022 (No 2).   

Policy  

2 These amendment regulations do not require any new policy decisions from the 
Cabinet Legislation Committee. 

Improvements to electronic prescribing 

3 The New Zealand ePrescription Service (NZePS) is a fast, secure system for the 
transmission and authentication of electronic prescriptions. It enables a prescription to 
be generated by the prescriber on an approved system, transmitted to the NZePS 
health information exchange broker and downloaded electronically at a community 
pharmacy. 

4 The use of electronic prescriptions, instead of traditional hard-copy prescriptions, 
reduces costs for practices, provides flexibility for practitioners and improves the 
patient experience with fewer delays and less chance of prescriber error. 

5 Transitioning prescriptions onto the NZePS will also enable regulators to more 
efficiently monitor and audit prescribing behaviour. 

6 On 15 August 2022, Cabinet agreed to amend regulations to remove regulatory 
barriers to electronic prescribing and improve patient access to medicines by: 

6.1 enabling controlled drugs to be prescribed electronically  

6.2 reducing the frequency prescribers need to issue prescriptions for certain 
controlled drugs, when issued through the NZePS 

6.3 codifying the waiver issued by the Director-General that enables electronic 
prescribing 

6.4 ensuring designated pharmacist prescribers and designated prescriber nurses 
can continue to prescribe certain medicines when they become controlled 
drugs [CAB-22-MIN-0316]. 
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Minor correction to Misuse of Drugs Regulations 

7 A minor printing error within the Misuse of Drugs Regulations was discovered 
through the drafting process of these amendments. Parliamentary Counsel Office have 
recommended using this opportunity to correct the error. 

Timing and 28-day rule  

8 I am not seeking a waiver of the 28-day rule. 

9 The regulations will be notified in the New Zealand Gazette as soon as possible after 
officials are informed of the Executive Council’s agreement. The regulations will 
come into force 28 days after they are notified in the Gazette. 

Compliance  

10 The regulations comply with: 

10.1 the principles of the Treaty of Waitangi; 

10.2 advice from the Treaty Provisions Officials Group on any Treaty of Waitangi 
provisions;  

10.3 the rights and freedoms contained in the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act 1990 
or the Human Rights Act 1993;  

10.4 the principles and guidelines set out in the Privacy Act 2020; 

10.5 relevant international standards and obligations;  

10.6 the Legislation Guidelines (2021 edition), which are maintained by the 
Legislation Design and Advisory Committee. 

11 The Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 will be made under section 37 of 
the Misuse of Drugs Act 1975. 

12 The Medicines Amendment Regulations 2022 (No 2) will be made under section 105 
of the Medicines Act 1981. This section requires that I must be satisfied that 
consultation has occurred with ‘such organisations or bodies as appear to the Minister 
to be representative of persons likely to be substantially affected by the regulations.’ I 
am satisfied that Manatū Hauora has consulted with the appropriate organisations and 
bodies on my behalf. 

Regulations Review Committee 

13 The Parliamentary Counsel Office does not consider there are grounds for the 
Regulations Review Committee to draw this instrument or regulations to the attention 
of the House of Representatives under Standing Order 327. 

Certification by Parliamentary Counsel  

14 The draft regulations have been certified by the Parliamentary Counsel Office as 
being in order for submission to Cabinet. 
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Impact Analysis 

15 The Treasury’s Regulatory Impact Analysis team has determined that the proposals 
are exempt from the requirement to provide a Regulatory Impact Statement on the 
grounds that they have no or only minor impacts on businesses, individuals, and not-
for-profit entities. 

Publicity  

16 My office will issue a press release about these changes once they have been 
authorised by the Executive Council. 

17 Once the regulations are notified in the Gazette, officials from Manatū Hauora and Te 
Whatu Ora will communicate directly with the impacted health practitioners to ensure 
they are aware of the new regulations and the implications.  

Proactive release 

18 This paper will be proactively released according to standard processes under the 
Cabinet Office circular CO (18) 4, subject to redactions as appropriate under the 
Official Information Act 1982.   

Consultation  

19 The following departments have been consulted on this paper: Pharmac, New Zealand 
Police, New Zealand Customs Service, Ministry of Justice, Te Whatu Ora, Te Aka 
Whai Ora, the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet and the Treasury. 

Recommendations 

I recommend that the Cabinet Legislation Committee: 

1 note that on 15 August 2022 Cabinet agreed to: 

1.1 enable controlled drug medicines to be prescribed electronically 

1.2 reduce the frequency prescribers need to issue prescriptions for certain 
controlled drugs, when issued through the NZePS 

1.3 codify the waiver issued by the Director-General that enables electronic 
prescribing 

1.4 ensure designated pharmacist prescribers and designated prescriber nurses can 
continue to prescribe certain medicines when they become controlled drugs 
[CAB-22-MIN-0316 refers]; 

2 note that the Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 will give effect to the 
decision referred to in recommendation 1.1, 1.2 and 1.4 above; 

3 note that the Medicines Amendment Regulations 2022 (No 2) will give effect to the 
decision referred to in recommendation 1.3 above; 
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4 note that section 105 of the Medicines Act requires that I be satisfied that consultation 
has occurred with such organisations or bodies as appear to me to be representative of 
persons likely to be substantially affected by the regulations; 

5 note my advice as Minister of Health that these requirements have been met;  

6 authorise the submission to the Executive Council of the Misuse of Drugs 
Amendment Regulations 2022 and the Medicines Amendment Regulations 2022 (No 
2); 

7 note that the Misuse of Drugs Amendment Regulations 2022 and the Medicines 
Amendment Regulations 2022 (No 2) come into force on 22 December 2022; 

 

Authorised for lodgement 

 

Hon Andrew Little  

Minister of Health 
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
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